STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRUECTl?"Ql Pri 130 RCVD 57 '

TDD Access: Relay NH

INTERIM COMMISSIONER
1-800-735-2964

Jared Chicoine
Tel. {603) 271-3670

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FAX No. 271-1526

Christopher J. Ellms, Jr.
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DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www._energy.nh.gov

21 8. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 29, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council '

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into a Retroactive amendment to an existing
Contract Agreement (Contract #1076439) with Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, (VC
#177200), Dover, NH, by extending the completion date from September 30, 2021 to September 30, 2022 with no
change in the price limitation of $3,039,459.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), effective retroactively to
October 1, 2021 upon approval of Goverrior and Executive Council. This contract was originally approved by
Governor and Executive Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #47-A) and amended on March 24, 2021 (Item
#44). 100% Federal Funds. :

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to allow the vendor additional time to expend the contract funds. US DHHS made
CARES Act funds available in FY21 which resulted in an increase in remaining funds for the annual fuel -
assistance block grant funding. US DHHS allows the state and our sub-grantees two years to expend the funds.
By extending this contract, the Community Action Agency is able to continue their efforts to add more low-
income families to the approved clientele listing for assistance for the new heating season. .

This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New
Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to
help pay for heating costs this winter season. ‘

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income
guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local
level. '

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be réquested to support this program.

espectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Director

IC/el



. NEW HAMP_SHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

'SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AMENDMENT #2

This Amendment dated September 24, 2021 is between the State of New Hampshire Department
of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“State”) and Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, 577 Central Avenue, Suite 10, P.O.
Box 160, Dover, Strafford County, NH 03820 (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), Contract Number
1076439, as approved by Governor and Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #47A), as amended
March 24, 2021 (#44), the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and
conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as

specified therein.

WHEREAS, puréuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after
approval of such madification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by.striking the
. current completion date of September 30, 2021 and inserting in place thereof the

date of September 30, 2022.

B) Exhibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the
current contract dates of “October- 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021" and

inserting in place thereof “October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2022

C) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification” to “October 1, 2020 to
September 30, 2022”

D) Exhibit E: Amend contract pcriod‘datcs to “October 1, 2020 to September 30,
2022” _

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full
force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it

existed immediately prior to this Amendment.
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

Contractor Initials:

CAPSC Amendment
Date:

Grant: G-2101NHLIEA
CFDA: 93.568
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above

written.
STATE QF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Depgrtment of Engrgy '
MJQ >
By: —

Jired Chicoine, Interim Commissiouer

unity Action Partnershﬁ of Strafford County

v A (hedw fide CEC

(Name & Title of Person Author{'zed to Sign)

State of N o H'M’“W'.?A e
County of vatford.

On thJS K% day of g&ﬁy’-(/W\bM 2021, before me, /QL""‘ lffﬂ/’! m brri Isé‘ n'

the undersigned officer, personally appeared » who
acknowledged himself/herself to be the of Commumtv Action Partnershlp
of Strafford County, a corporation, and that he/she being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing

instrument for the purposes contained therein
“\\\\““II"I‘"”

% \'z",‘...:.f‘_‘o,g"r :
IN WITNESS ERERF, [ 'h?@ﬁﬂto set my hand and official seal. ~

%,

=§' ; commrssion 19%

$7{  EXPIRE TEE

E uviszos | = WWW

£ '?b \o.- § Notary Publ:c/Justlce of the Peace

% any Pyl \qi<r§ My Commission expires:
,"’, o - \\\\
Approved as to for'ﬂ’{"amuﬁbn and substance:

OFFICE OF THE RNEY GENERAL
By: <~ .

~Assistant Attorney General
Date: /01/15/29 7))

~ Y hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2021,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

"By:
Title:"
CAPSC Amendment a Contractor Initial ?/Mﬂ
Grant: G-2101NFHLIEA _ : Date: (3 ] ZS?‘? Z?
_ A ' Page 2 0f 2

CFDA: 93.568



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
{Corporate Authority)
1, Jean Miccolo, Clerk/Secretary of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

{hereinafter the “Corporation”), a New Hambshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) | am the duly

elected and acting Board of Directors Chair of the Corporation;{2} | maintain and have custody and am familiar
with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) | am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the
contents of such boolis;(4} that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on October 21, 2020

such
authority to be in force and effect until September 30, 2022.

The person(s} holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

____Betsey Andrews Parker CEO
{name) {position)

___Alan Brown ___Board Chair
{(name) {position)

(5) the meeting of the Board of Directors was held. in accordance with New Hampshire

Law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6} said authorization has not been modified, amended or
rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this

-}8 day of __ September__, 2021.
\‘J -r."/b) [Z "YA

,‘éfean Miccolé/Secretarv
v

STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Strafford

On this _g_g_dav of __ September_, 2021, before me, _Kathleen Morrison the Undersigned
Officer, personally appeared Jean Miccolo who acknowledged her/himseif

To be the Secretary of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, a corporation and that
She/he as such Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the

Purposes therein contained.

IN ' WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and official sea
\\‘\

l.

\3' BE 10 %tawPubllc/KathleenMornson

Commission Expiration Date: July 15" 2025 3% My

ﬂ6

s COMMISSION
{  EXPIRES
=+ JULY 15, 2025
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire. do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Co_rporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on May 25, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65583
Certificate Number: 0005337935

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto sct my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of April A.D. 2021,

Do fodr

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




DATE (MMWDRDIYYYY)

ACO,RD? CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE X S

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFIGATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED previsions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an sndorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT  Tert Davis
CGl insuranca, Inc. PHONE . (860)841-4600 [Tt noy;  (866) 574-2443
5 Darlmouth Drive ) ADDRESS: TDavis@CGIBusinessinsurance.com
: INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC ¥

Aubum NH 03032 \NSURER & : Hanover Insurance Company 22292
INSURED NSURER B ; EastemAlliance 10724

Comrnunity Actlon Parinership of Strafford County wsURERc: Philadelphia indemnity

DBA: Strafford CAP INSURER D :

577 Central St, Ste 10 : INSURER € :

Dover NH 03820 INSURER F :
COVERAGES : CERTIFICATE NUMBER: _ 21-22 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TQ THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY FERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WIiTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TOALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

BH EDDL]SOUH] ["FOLIC
'{‘TR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER mwtogrrgfﬁm (anum LIMITS
3¢| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE 5 1.000,000
"DAMAGE TOHENTED
) cuamssunoe (> occun : PREMISES (En occumwnce) {3 100090
é Abuse & Molestalion Liab $1M - "MED EXP [Any 08 parson) 5 10,000
AL ZrVA192135 0710172021 | 0702022 | pepsonaL & ADV INJURY s 1,000,000
| GENAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 3 3,000,000
| <) pouicy 25 LoC PRODUCTS - COMProPAGG | 3 Included
OTHER: Profassional Llabllity s 1,000,000
" COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
[ AutomoBILE LABLITY e .mls s 1,000,000
DL ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Porpsrdon) | §
I~ | @wNED SCHEDULED
A | | AuTos omy AUTOS” AWVA156930 07/0112021 | OT/01/2022 | BODIY INJURY (Peraccidenl} | §
3¢] HiReD NON-OWNED . |PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| 7 AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY ' . | (Por accident)
- Medical Paymenits s 5.000
| ><| umsreLLaLtAB | X occur EACH OCCURRENCE s 4.000.000
A [ excessuan CLAMS-MADE * | UHVA192136 07/01/2021 | 070172022 | sgorecate s 4.000,000
oeo | <] revenTion s 9 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION ] PER I DOTH-
-{ AND EMPLOYERS' LIADILITY Yin STATUTE ER o050
SRl Ay RIA 03-0000113794-04 07/01/2021 | 07/0112022 | B EACHACCIOENT LI
{Mandatory in NH) £ DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | 5 1/000.000
if yox, dascribe under - 1 000 000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below . E.L DISEASE - PoLICY LMIT | 3 BN
' . Par Qccurence 43,000,000
Directors & Officers )
C | EPLI and Crime Included PSD1638786 omi012021 | 0710172022 | Aggregate Limil $6,000.000
’ Employes Dishonesty 1,0001,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS { VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Addltional Remarks Schadule, may be attached If more space is raquited)
Workers Comp 3A Stato: NH

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELWERED IN

Stale OfNH. NH Dept of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Attn: Jane Lemire
+ 21 South Frult St, Ste 10
Concord NH 03301 ‘ )1 f}jf

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rescrved.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 {2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registerad marks of ACORD




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 033013834 o ‘
Telephone: (603) 271-2155 IVISION OF PLANNING

CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU . DivisiON OF ENERGY
GOVERNOR - Fax: (603} 271-2615 www.nh. gov/osi

MAR11’21 anl1:04 RCYD LH 3

Merch 8, 2021 APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu, & COUNCIL ON:  3/24/2021
521:: t:{c):::norablc Council AGEN DA |TEM : #44

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 PO#1 076439

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement

(Contract #1076439) with Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, (VC #177200), Dover, NH, by
increasing the contract amount by $834,375.00 from § 2,205,084.00 to $3,039,459.00 for the Fuel Assistance
Program (FAP), effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through September 30, 2021. This
contract was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 23, 2020, ltem #47-A. 100%
Federal Funds. ' :

Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assistance FY 2021 02E21A
01-02-02-024010-77050000 ' : 8004
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $834,375.00

EXPLANATION

This contract amendment is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program.

The additional amount requested in this contract amendment represents (the CAAs) share of Federal LIHEAP
funding expected for PY 2021. This OSI contract amendment will provide the Community Action Agency with
program funds to support eligible New Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled
citizens who are in need of assistance to help pay for heating costs this winter season.

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified-families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income
guidelines. OSI subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local level,
In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Director
1C/adc

G&C 312412021
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



OFFIiCE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT o
COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP .OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

This Amendmeiit dated Febriiary 12, 2021 is between the Staté of New Hariipshire, Office of
Strategic Initiativés, 107 Pleasant Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred
to as the “State™”) and Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, 577 Central Avenue, Suite
10, P.O. Box: 160, Dover, Strafford County, NH 03820 (hereinafier referred to as the “Contractor”).

‘Pursuant to.an Agreement (hercinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), Contract Number
1076439, as approved by Govemnor and Council on.September 23, 2020 (Ttem #47A), the Contractor has
agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by thie Staté of certain sums as specified theréin.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after
approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor-and Council; and

~ WHEREAS, Fhe State-and the Contractor have agreed to amend the, Agreement in-certain.
respects;

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and,conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended.and modified as
follows: . '
A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Apreermient by istriking;the
curfent suin of $2,205,084.00 and inserting in place théréof ‘thetotal summi of
$3,039,459.00.
B) Exhibit C - Paymeiit Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first pérdgréph by Striking the
cufrent sum of $2,205,084.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking:the current sum of $179,602.00
and inserting $182,888.00 for administrative costs. '

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the-current sum of $1,906,336.00
and inserting $2,737,425.00 for program costs.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and imodified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the partiés heréunder shall remain in full
forcé and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it
existed immediately prior to this Amendment. -

: CONTRACT AMENDMENT OFFICE OF § RA’_FEGIC INITIATIVES
CAPSC Armendmént Commc:or,h% s: .
Grant; G-210INHLIEA. Date: =) .

CFDA: 93.568 U Page 10f2




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of thé day and year first:above

written.
STATE OF NEW HAMPSI—HRE
S
eﬁ'cd Chtcome brmwt———’
txon Paru:wrs ppof Straﬁ'ord County
’ Betsey Andx’cws Pa:ker .CEO
State of New Hamipshire
County of‘Stmfford

On this H day of Febniar, 2021, before me, Kathleen Morrison_, the undersigned officer, personaily
. appeared Betsey Mdrcws Parker; who acknowledged himself/herself to be the CEO of Community

ction Partnership of. Stiafford County, & corporation, and. that he/she being autherized so to do,
executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein

IN WITNESS J EBEF,,’I hereunto set my hand, and official seal.
Yon Promspa ]

thary Public{Kaﬂ'llcc-ﬁ Morrison
My Commission.expires: July 15%, 2025

\\‘\ ..o OI...

$
37 cnmmam%
g ¢ “XPIRER

Approved. &‘i@h’% end substance:

g HE ) PN i\\“ -
i OFFICE OF THE ATTQ Y'GENERAL
) Assistant Attorney General

3/ 9/22421

Date;

1 hereby certify that the foregoing contract was a{pmVEgiby the Governor and Gouncil of the State of
, 2021

New Hampshire at their-meeting on
' \RY OF STATE

OFFICE

. DEPUTY SECRETARY OF STATE

‘

CAPSC Amendment Contraclar Inltinls @
’ Date:. . 3—{ 17712}

Grwit: G:210INHLIEA - [T
CFDA: 93.568 " "Page 2 of 2




 State of New Bampshire
Department of State

CEI_{TIF ICATE

1, Williaos. M. Gardner, Sceretary of State of the Stals of New Hempshire; do hereby certify that COMMUN]TY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is & New Harripshire Nanprofit Corporation registered to transact business in'New,
Hampshire on'May 25, 1965..1. further certify that #1] fees.2nd documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

teceived and is in good stending as far as'this office is concemed.

Business 1D: §5583
Certificate Number: 0004881688

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOCF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to bo offixed
the Seal-of the Stats of New Hampshire,
‘this 20d-day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner
Sccretary of State




"~ CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY _

I, Jeap Miccolo, Clerk/Secretary of Community Action Partnership of Strafford -County
(Name), . . (CGorporetion name) '
(Hereinafter the “Corporation”), a _New Hampshire_ corporation, hereby certify that::(1) [ am the duly
(State)
elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2)' 1 maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute. books of the Corporation; (3) .am duly'authorized. to issue-certificates with:respéct to. the contents.of such
books; (4) that the Board of Diréctors of the:Corporation have.authorized, on. October 21, 2020, such authority

(Dste)
to be in force and eﬁ‘cct until S_MM

{Coritiact términation date)

The person(s) holdmg the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation ainy contract or other iristrument for, the sale of products and services:

Betsey Andrews Pjrker - ' CEO
(Name) . (Position)
Alan Brown . . _ Board Chair
(Nam) (Position)

(S) The meeting of the Board.of Directors was held in accordance with __New Hamipsliire
{State-of incorporetion)

\
law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not- bccn modnﬁed amendcd or reséinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

{6)1 hcreby tinderstand that the State of New Hampsh:re will rely on thls ccrtlﬁcalc as evidence that the pérson(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full suthority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limité.on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporat:on on contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, -all such. limntanons are expressly stated herein.

IN WlTNESS WHEREOF, I.have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporanon this
[ ! day of February, 2021.




DATE [(MROOYYYY)

~ N ‘
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 021772021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S}), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR-PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. -

| e —

IMPORTANT: If tha cartificste holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy({les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
11 SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjsct to the terms and conditions of the pelicy, certaln policios may require an endorsement. A statsment on
this certificats does not confer rights to the cortificate holder In llou of such endorsement(s}.

PRODUCER _g?gg,‘c" Teri Davia
CGl Business insurenco PHONE  (GAA} 841-4800 ] ;g__,,ﬂ (BBY) 574-2443
5 Dartmouth Drive SDORESS: TOavisgCGIBusinessinsurance.com
: INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC §
-| Auburn NH 03032 wSuRER A ;. Hanover Insurance Company 22292
INSURED C waunER g EBstern Alliance
Commurilty Action Partnership of Strafford County wesungR ¢ ;. Philadeiphia Insurance
DBA: Strafford CAP . WSURER D : '
577 Central 51, Ste 10 WNSURER E -
Dover NH 03820 WEURER F ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  20/21 Masier REVISION KUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED QR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TQ ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS ANO CONDIIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REOQUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

I‘,“m!" " TYPE OF INSURANCE wen wen POLICY NUMBER M m‘ umTs
] commERcirL oengRaL LaBIITY . . | eacw occunrence s 1,000,000
cusuoe [ oceum PREMISES ica ccoarwon | 8 109.000
[ | MED EXP (Aryora parsery | 3 10,000
A ZHVA192138 123172020 | 123172021 [ pensonaraaovinoury | 3 1:090.000
€4, AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGOREGATE 3 3,000,000
POUCY Dggg L__]“’C PROCUCTS - COMPROPAGG | 3 Included
OTHER: Professional Liabilily s 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABIITY TOMBIED BRCLE UM 14 1,000,000
¢ ANy AUTO . : BOOLY INAURY (Pwr parsen) | 3
™| OWNEL SCHEDULED
Al 19 LY SO AWVAI 58830 1203112020 | 1203172021 | BODILY INJURY (Per sccicen) | §
] HIRES, . NON-CVWNED [ FROPEATY CAMAGE "
| 7 aUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Pot pcoident
) Uninsured motorist s 1,000,000
S e I > e oo |y 4000000
A EXCES3 UAD g aane | UHVA192130 123112020 | 120172021 [ consante y 4,000,000
oeo | <] rereamon s @ ' 3
WONXERS COMPENSATION : PR | .
AND EMPLOYERS LIAGILITY YIN ‘ > e | 155 330000
ORPARTNEREXECUTIVE 000,
B | e ot Nt 03.0000133794-03 123172020 | 1273172021 |k EACHACCIOENT .
Lu.mmm:g- ‘ £ OISEASE . EAEMPLOYEE | 3 1:000.000
OESCRIFTION OF DPERATIONS bekow EL OSEASE . PouCYUMT | 3 1.000.000
Directors 8 Officers
[ o] EPLI and Crime Includad PHSD1538878 DO8/2472020 | 068/24/2021 | Per Oooumence 3,000,000
Agregate Limit 6,000,000
DEECRIPTION DF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEMICLES {ACORD 101, A I Remarks Scheduls, méy be siached H mors space is required)
Workers Comp 3A Slate: NH
CERTIFICATE KHOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

State of New Hampshire ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Off. of Strategic Initlatives
Johnson Hal, 107 Pieasani St

Concord | a;m 03301 ‘ ’D‘J OL.[

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

: © 1988-2018 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 28 (2016/03) . Tha ACORD nema and logo ars roglstared marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall
Concord, NH 03301-3834
Telephone: {603) 271-2155
Fax: (603) 271-2615

SEP14’20 An11:18 ons 87

DIVISION OF PLANNING
DIvISION OF ENERGY
www.nh.gov/osi

September 9, 2020 . APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
- & COUNCIL ON:  09/23/2020
A AGENDA ITEM: #47A
" His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu : PO#1076439
and the Honorable Council . .
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (051) to enter into 8 SOLE SOURCE contract with Community
Action Partnership of Strefford County, (VC #177200), Dover, NH, in the amount of $2,205,084.00 for the Fuel
Assistance Program effective October |, 2020 lhrough September 30, 2021, upon spproval of Governor and
E\ccuuvc Council. 100% Fedesal Funds '

Funds to support this request are snticipated o be available in the following account in £Y 2021 upon the
availabitity and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

trategic [nitiati istance FY 2021
01.02-02-024010-77050000 '
074-500587 Grants lor Pub Assist & Relief $2,205,084.00

2) Furher request authorization 10 advance Community Action Parmersh:p of Strafford County 5213,084.00
from the above- rel'crenced contract amount.

" EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Comnmunity Action Agencies (CAA)
in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the
synergies that benefit the FAP &5 a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federsl
assisiance programs, and the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver FAP services. OS| proposes to
continue (o subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs work close]y with the OSI FAP Administrator in the implementation of the
program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal-Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified New Hampshire families,
including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are targeied to low income households with high
energy burdens. The current moximum income level is 60% of the State Median Income {SMI), which is
$69,686.00 for 8 family of four. The average FAP benefit during the last program year was $890.00.

The LIHEAP program operates on an October 1, 2020 10 September 30, 2021 program year, but at this time
Congress has not finalized appropriations for the Federal fiscal year 2021. Therefore, the contract @mount for

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 Gac 09132020



His Execliency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hononble Council
Scptember 8, 2020

Pagc 20l 2

each of the Community Action Agencies is based upon OSI's best estimate of anticipated federal funding,
including carryover funds from the prior program year. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monies are available to be expended. The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to suppont
this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Cirector

JC/EPS

Enclosures

G&C 097232020



1., IDENTIFICATION.

‘FORMNUMBER B-37 (verion: LU/ 112019)

Hﬂlﬁﬁ This agreement and oll of i its an.nchm:nt: sha!l become, pubhc upon submission (o Govcmor end
Execufive-Council for npp:iovnl Any information that is pnvntc conf dentialor pwpne(ary misst, .
be clcarly identified lo the agency and agreed [o in wiiting prior to ng,nlng lhc conuact

ACREEM ENT

The-Stdte of New Hampshire: and. lhe Contrmor hcn:by ‘mutuslly sgree as follows:,

GENFRAL PROVISIONS.

Office: of Surategic Inilistives'

1.1 Stele Agency Name.

‘107 Pleasant: Sl.rcct. John:on Hall

‘12, Stdte-Agency Addms

Concord New. Hnmpshtre 0330|

’ -I;I ) -.Qoriu-ar,tdr.-Si'gnatur_e

4

: ! 3 Comnuoc Narne. I
1 Commuriiry. Action Pnnner:hlp -of Strafford’ Crumy

14 Comnclor Add.rts
577 Cmml Avcnuc Suite. lO ‘PO Box 160; Dover, NH 01320

s ,C_onu-gqor Phcmc

‘1.6 Account.Numiber.
0i-02:02:024010:77050000-

Numbet 01
-‘ ou-sooml 02E21A

{603) $16-8130

1.7.CompleticnDate
- September 30,2021

“ l 8 Pﬂu L:rmlmon.
$2,205,084.00

1 9 Conu-ncung Officer for-State, Agéncy
Eiléen: Sm:glowski- Fuel Agsistorice Prigram Administrator -

_ {603) 27l-2155

l IO Sme Agency Telephonr. Numba

Date: 3- g_'}e

T2 Nnrnc afid. Titlé:of Contnclor -Signatory.

Betsey Aridréivs’ Pulcr, Exea.mve Direcior-

‘

_._,c:

1.18 Name and Titlo of State AgEACy SIgnaiary

r/?ldﬂvl Jared Cliwiue, D ivectsis

. By:

Approvnl by'thé N H. Departmc.m of Administration, Divlsion of: Pcrsonncl (Yf.gpplicable). R

Dircetor,. On o

ocral (For, Stbstance and EXEcution) rfqpp.ncabw — 3 —

: Councll {i fappﬂcab!e)

Il'EPll‘IYGSEﬁREFARY OF STATE SEP13 .
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, ecting through the sgency identified in block .4

("State™), engepes contractor identified in  block 1)

(“Contractor”) 10 perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and mare particulscly

" described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
hesein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATEACOMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement (0 the
contrary, and subject to the epproval of the Govemar and
Exccutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if spplicable,
this Agreement, end all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council zpprove this Agreement ss indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such gpproval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1,13 (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prioe to the
EfTective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed ! the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the Stete shell have no lisbility to the Contractor,
including wilhout limitation, any obligation lo pay .the
Contractor (or any costs incurred or Services performed.
Conrrecior must complese all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7

4. CONDJTIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemeni {o the
contrery, ull obligstions of the Secare hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upan the availability and continued appropristion of
funds affected by any state or federe) legisiative or cxecutive
action that reduces, climinates or otherwise modifies the
sppropristion or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no cvent shall the State be diable for eny payments
hercunder in excess of such availzble appropristed funds. dn the
evenl of a reduction or termination of eppropriated funds, the
Stetc shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become aveilable, if ever, and shall have the right 1o reduce or
terminatc the Services under this Agreement immedintely ugon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or.termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
cvent funds in thet Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT,

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and Lerms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the compleie reimbursement to the Contractor for ol
expenses, of whatever nature incurved by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

Page 2 of 4

- compensation 1o the Contractor for the Services. The State shall

have no lisbility 1o the Contractor ather than the conlrct price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwisc payable 10 the Contracior under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision-of tsw.

5.4 Notwithstanding eny provision in this Agreement 10 the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpecied circumstances, in no
¢event shell the towl of all payments suthorized, or ectuglty made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set {orth in block 1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND RECULATLONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conneclion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with sll spplicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of fcderat, suste, county or municipal
suthorities which impose eny obligation or duty upon the
Canlrecior, including, but not limited to, civil rights and cqual
employment epportunity laws, [n addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and siatutes, and with any rules, reguiations and guidclines as the
State or the United Stotes issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all epplicable intcllectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coatractor shall not
discriminale against employees ot applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
oricntation, 6r national origin and will take affirmative action (o
prevent such discriminalion, '
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or Unired States
access 1o any of the Contractor's books, records end accounts for
the purpose of escertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenents, terms end conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary 1o perform the Services. The Contractor wamants that
8ll personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified 1o
petform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized (o do $o under ell applicable laws.

7.2 Uniess otherwisc nutherized in writing, during the term of
this Agreemeny, end for o period of six () months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contrector shell not hire, and
shzll not permit any subcontreclor of other person, firm or
corporstion with whom it is engaged in.» combined effort 10
perform the Services to hire, any person who is 8 Staie employee
oc official, who is materislly involved in the procurement,
sdministration or performance of this Agreement.  This
peovision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting OfMicer specificd in block 1.9, or his ot her
suceessor, shall be the State’s representative. Lo the eventof sy
dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracling Officer's decision shall be final for the Siate.

Contractor Initials
Date L




8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the fallawing acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of defsult héreunder (*Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfoctorily or on
schedute,

§.1.2 failure to submil any repon required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, tervh or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon Ihe occurrence of any Event of Defaul, the State may
take any onc, or more, or ali, of the following a'c:nons

8.2.1 give the Contractor B writlen notice spec(fymg the Event of
Default and requiring it 1o be remedied within, in the absence of
§ greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; &nd if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) day: after gwmg the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor @ written nolice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be rmdc under this
Agreement end ordering that the portion of |l-’|e coniract price
which would otherwise accruc to the Contractor during the
period from the dete of such notice untif such ||rne o3 the Stare
determines that the Contracior has cured the Event of Default
shall never be peid to the Contrector;

8.1.3 give the Contractor b writicn notice spcufymg the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligetions the State may
owe to the Contractor eny damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default;-and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a writlen nolice specifying the Event of
Defeul;, west the Apreement es bruchedi terminate the
Aprecment and pursue eny of its remedics at law of in equity. o1
both.

£.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provmons hereof after
any Event of Default shall be dezmed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any Subscquent Event of
Defauh. No express feilureto m!’on:c eny Evcm of Defsult shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach end
_ all of the provisions hercof upon any funher o other Event of
Defeult on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION

9.) Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, 8l its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any rcason in whol¢ or
in part, by thirty (30) days wrilien notice (o the Contractor that
the State is excrcising its option to terminate the Agreement,
9.2 In the event of en corly termination of tlns Agreement lor
any reason other thzn the completion of the Services, the
Contrector shell, at the State's discretion,| deliver 10 the
Contracting Officer, not later than fificen (15) days after the date
of wermination, & repont ("Terminstion Repon”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the conlract price camed, 10

and including the date of termination. The form, subject mater, |

content, and number of copies of the Termmancm ‘Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report descnbcd in the attached
EXHIBIT B. 1n eddilion, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of carly lcnmnu.l'ion, develop and

submil 10 the State & Transition Plan (or services under the
Agreement. ,
10. DATAIACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean al)
infarmation and things developed or obtained during the
performence of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorisl reproductions, drawings, snalyzes, graphic
representnlions, compuler programs, computer priniouts, notes,
leners, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All dats and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for thal purpose
under this Agreement, shalt be the property of the State, and
chall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for sany reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govemed by N.H. RSA
chaptes 91-A or other existing law. D:sclosurr. of data requires
peior writicn approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TQO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
sn independent contracior; and is neither an ggent nor en
cmployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTicers, employees, agents or members shail have autherity to
bind the Staie or receive any benefits, workers' compensation of
other emoluments provided by the State o its employees,

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS,
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interést in this Agreement without the prior wrirten notice, which
shell be provided to the State ut least (ifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a writien consent of the Swute. For purposes
of this parigreph, 8 Chsnge of Control shall constitute
assignment.  “Chenge of Control* means (s) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of relaied transactions in
which a third party, together with ils affilistes, becomes the
direct or indirect ewner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shareg or simitar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of alf or substantially ell
of the assets of the Contractor,

12.2 None of the Scrvices shall be subcontracied by (he
Contracior without prior written notice end consent of the State.
The Siaie is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in o subcontract or an sssignment agreement to which il is not

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempled by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Stete, its
officers and employees, from and sgainst any and all claims,
lizbilities and costs for any personal injury or property dameages,
patent or copytight infringement, or other claims assencd against
the State, its.ofTicers or employecs, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed 10 arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contracior, or subcontractors, including bul not limited 1o the
negligence, reckless of intentional conduct. The State shall nol
be lisble for any costs incurred by the Contrector erising under
this parograph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shell be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved 1o the
State. This cowenant in parsgraph 13 shall survive the
terminstion of this Agreement,

14, INSURANCE.

)4.1 The Contractor shall, & ils sole . expense, obtsin and
continuously maintein in force, and shall requirc any
subconiractor of assignee 10 obtain and maintsin in force, the
following insurance:

14:1.1 commercial general ligbility insurince sgainst ali claims
of bodily injury, death or peoperty damage, in amounts of n&
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence snd '$2,000,000 eggregsic
or excess; and .
14.1.2 specizl ceuse of toss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole teplacement value of the.property.

14.2 The policies described in subporngraph 14,1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements spproved for use in the Slate
of New Hempshire by the N.H. Depanment of Insurance, end
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire. '
{4.3 The Contrsctor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
-identibed in biock 1.9, or his oc her successor, 8 cenificete(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreemeni.
Contractor shall eiso furmish (o the Contracting OfTicer Mentified
in block 1.9, or his or her successar, certificate(s) of insurance
far all renewal(s) of insurance required underthis Agreement no
fater then ten {10} days prior to the expiration date of cach
insurence policy. The cenificate(s) of insurance 2nd any
renewali thercal shall be attached and #re incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this egreement, the Contractor agrees, cenifics
and warrents that the Cantractor is in compliance with or exempl
from, the requiremnents of N.H. RSA chapier 281-A (" Workers’
Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontrictor Or assignee to secure and mainiain,
peyment of Workers' Compensstion in connection with
aclivities which the person proposes Lo underiake pursuant (o this
Agreement. The Coatracior shall (umish ihe Contracling Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her suceessor, proof of Workers®
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A end any epplicable renewel(s) thereof, which shall be
shiached and ere incorporated hercin by reference. The State
shall ot be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontrector or employee of Contraclor,
which might arise under applicable State- of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws  in - connection  with  the
-performance of the Services under this Agreement.
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by 8 party hereto o the other party
thall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given af the lime
of mailing by centified mail, postage prepaid, in 8 Unitcd Stales
Post Office addressed to the pastics al the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only sfier approvel of such smendment,
weiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of Mew Hampshire unless no such epprovel is required
under the circumstances pursvant 1o State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed in sccordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures 1o the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and ossigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panties to express their mutual inteat, end o ruke
of construction shall be applied againgt or in favor of eny pacy.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hempshire Superior Court which shail have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

t9. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the eveni of o conflict
berween the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or atiachments and amendment thereof, the tems of the
P-37 (a5 modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD. PARTIES. The ponies hereto do not Intend to
benefit eny third partics and this Agreement shall pot be
consirued (o confler any such bencfit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes onty, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or gid in the
interpretation, consiruction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additiona) or medifying
provisions set forth in the sniached EXHIBIT A ere Incorporated
herein by reference. :

"23, SEVERABILITY. In the ¢vent any of the provisions of this

Agreement are held by » count of competent junisdiclion to be
contrary to any siate or federal taw, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remein in full (orce and effeet.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in o number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed en original, constitules the cntire sgreement and
undersianding between the parties, and supersedes oll prior
ggreements and undersiandings with respec o the subject maner
hereof, :

Contractor [nilials W
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 1.16 of the General Provisions, shal! not epply to this agreement.

2. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall
deliver 1o the State an mdepcndcnl sudit of the Contractlor’s entire agency by & qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

3. This audit shall be conductcd in accordance with the audit requirements of Office of
Manzgement and Budgcll (OMB) Circuler 2 CFR 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements.
The Fuel Assnstancc Program shall be considered a “major program™ for purposes of this audit.

4, This audit report shall mcludc a schedule of revenues and expenditures by conteact or grant
number of all cxpendlturcs during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process 1o choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

5. The audit report shall mcludc a schedule of pnor years' qucsuoncd costs along with an Agency
response to the curent slatus of the prioc years' questioned costs. Copies of all OMB letlers
written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to OSI. The audit shall be forwarded to OSI
within one month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each
finding or questioned cost.

6. Delete the following from pzuagraph 10 of the General vans:ons “The form, subject matter,
content, and number of cop:cs of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any
Final Report described i in.Exhibit A"

7. The costs charged underjthis contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
prnciples detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpar E - Cost Principles.

8. Program and financial rccords pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for 3
(three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200.333 -
Retention Requirements|for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

9. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the “Depariments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Educ:alicm,| and Related Agencies Appropriations Acl of 1995”, the following
provisions are applicable to this grant award:

2} Section 507: “Purchase of American -Made Bqulpmcnt and Products - [tisthe  sense
of the Congress lhsl to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products
purchased with flinds made available in this Act should be American-made.”

b) Scction 508: "* When issuing statements, press releases, rr.qucsts for proposals, bid .
solicilalions and mher documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal moncy, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
state and local governments and recipients of federal research grants, shall clearly state
(1) the pcrccnlagl: of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed
with federal mon'cy, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project or program,

CAPSC LIHEAP2) ) ExhidiuA. B&C
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and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program
that wili be financed by nan-governmental sources.”

10. CLOSE QUT OF CONTRACT. Al final required reports end reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

I1. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance Program
expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistence Program vendor
payments. All Fuel Assistance Program psyments, including Advance program payments, must
be transferred from the Community Action Agency's general operating account into a specific
Fuel Assistance Program sccount within 48 hours after being received electronically from the
State. CAAs must submit the bank account number of the designated bank account for the
advance funds to OSI prior to the ¢lectronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent
Advance program funds must remain in the FAP dedicated account at all times and cannot be
comingled with any ather CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a compiete clectronic copy
of the FAP-dedicated bank account statement to OS! on 2 monthly basis.

CAPSC LIHEAP2! Exhibis A, BRC (8
CFDAN). &3 Contracior Initis!
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EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees lo provide Fuel Assistance Program services lo qualificd low income
individuals, and sgrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program
in accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel
Assistence Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined

by OSI.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categories:
1. Qutreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FAP applicants.

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Recimbursement for goods end services delivered
b. Lines of credit
c. Budgel plan payments

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent.

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed a.{;propn'ale and necessary as defined in the
Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual.

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursemeats for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 sbove.

CAPSC LIHEAP2! ‘Cxhibits A, B&C W
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CEXHIBITC

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State
agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $2,205,084.00 (which hereinafler is referred to as the

"Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of the 2021 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Piogram grent from the
US Department of Health and Human Services, the following funds wiil be authorized:

$179,602.00 for administration costs, of which $22,450.00 will be issued as a cash edvance;
$1,906,336.00 for program costs, of which $190,634.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

$119,146.00 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this contract are October |, 2020 through September 30, 2021.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the Office of
Strategic Initiatives to the Contractor as the Federat funds become available. Drawdowns from the
balance of funds will be made 1o the Contractor only afier written documentation of cash need is

submitted to the State. Disburscment of the Grant shall be in accordance with procedures established

by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual,

CFDA Title: Low Income Home.Energy Assistance Program
CFDA No: 93.568

Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Feders) Agency: Health & Human Services

Administration {or Children and Families
Office of Community Services

CAPSC LIHEAP2I ‘ Echibis A BAC
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

¢ STANDARD EXHIBIT D
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
~ Sections 5154-5160 of the Drug-Frec Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 USC.
701 et seq.), end further agrecs to have the-Contractor's representative, as identified in Sectmns [.11 and £.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Centification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACT ORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR )
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Warkplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 70) et seq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations weee
amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990 Federnl Register (pages 21681-21691), and require '
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior o award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulalion provides that o grantee (and by inference
sub-grentees and sub-contractors) that is 8°state may clect to make one centification to the Department in each
- federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The cenificate set out below is & material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
swards the grant. False certificalion or violetion of the certification shali be grounds for suspcnsuon of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form

shoutd send it to: ‘ '

‘Director, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initistives,
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Half, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifics that it will or will coatinue 1o provide s drug-free workplace by:

(s) Publishing & statement notifying cmployees that the unlawlul manufaciure, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be teken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

. (b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) ' the dangers of drug sbuse in the workplsce;

(2) the grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace,

(3) eny available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee essistance programs; "and

(4) the penalties thet mey be imposed-upon employecs for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace. -

(c) Makmg it o requirement that each employce to be engaged in the: pcrfon'nance of the grant be
given s copy of the statement rcqunrcd by paragraph (a);

{d} Nolifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) abide by the terms oflhc statement; and
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd
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US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR -
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(2) " notify the employer in writing of his or her coaviction for a violation of 8 eriminal drug
statule occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

{c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
- subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise seceiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every gront
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated 8 central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

N Teking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving noli;:e under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employce who is so convicted:

(H) Teking appropriste personne! action sgainst such an employee, up to and including
’ termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, s
emended; or
7)) Requiring such employec to panticipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistence or
rehabilitation program spproved for such purposcs by & federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other approprigie agency. .

() Making a good feith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of parngrephs (a}, (b), (c), (d), (¢}, and (D). '

(B)  The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant. :

Place of Performance (strect address, cily, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

C@!ﬂ]&"ﬁ.&ﬁjﬂfﬂﬂﬂﬂf}w of Straf€orsl.  October 1, 2020 1o September 30, 2021
Contractor Name ) ‘ CDMT'? Period covered by this Certification

Betsn Andrews Yarker Ceo

Name and Title of Authorized Coniractor Representative

L L ?ﬁ»’w - 4§00

Contractor Represeniative Signature Dete
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBITE

The Contractor identified in Séction 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Seclion
319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 .U.S.C_ 1352,
snd further agrees to have d\e Contractor's representative, 8s identified in Scctions 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provnsnons execute the following Centification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT.OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT QF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Programs (indicate applicable progrem covered):
LIHEAP
. Contract Period: Ociober 1, 2020 to September 30, 202)

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and beliel that:

(1) No federal sppropristed funds have been peid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, 10 any

: person for influencing or atempting to influence an officer or employee of eny agency, & member of
Congress, an officer or employec of Congress, or an employee of s member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of eny federzl contract, continuation, renewsl, smendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperstive agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contrzctor). '

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempling to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, ar an employee of 8 member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grani, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying™,
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identifted as Standard Exhibit E-l.

3 The undersigned shall require that the language of this centification be included in the award document for
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-granis, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall cectify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a materia) representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is 8 prerequisite for making or entering into this transsction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to g civil penall?of not Jess than $10,000 end not more then $100,000 for each such faiture.

LYo 2

Contractor Representative Signature Contraclor's Representative Tatle
73
+ Commtiu Achin Burtrershzp o Straftod County 4-§-24
Contrtctor Neme Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE QFF!‘CE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBITF

The Contractor ideatified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Exccutive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
2nd Other Responsibility Matiers, and furiher agrees 16 have the Contractor's representative, a5 identified in
Sections 1.}1 and .12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Centification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBTLITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. ]

(2) The inability of a person to provide the centification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. 1 necessary, the prospeclive participant shall submit an explanation
af why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives’ delcrmination whether to enter into this transaction. However,
failure of the prospective primary panticipant to furnish a certification or an explanation shail disquslify such
peeson from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when OS5I
determined to enter into this transaclion. If it is later deteemined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroncous certification, in addition to other remedics aveilable to the federal
government, OSI may temminate this transaction for cause or defaull.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the 031 agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that ils certifcation
was erroncous when submitted or has become emaneous by reason of changed circumsiances.

(5) The terms “covered Ironsaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”

~ “participanl,” “person,” "primary covered transaction,” principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Covernge sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Sce the attached definitions.

{6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with

~ a person who is debarred, suspended, declored ineligible, or voluntarily exctuded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless suthorized by OS!.

{7} The prospective primary participani further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Centification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by OSI, without modification, in all lower tier cavered transaciions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered Lransactions. :

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rcly upon o cenification of o prospective participant in a lower lier
covered transaction that it is aot debarred, suspended, incligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is eoncous. A paniicipant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but i$ not required 10,
check the Non-procurement List {of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shalil be construed lo require establishment of & system of records in order
to render in good faith the centification required by this clause. The knowiedge and information of
participant is not required to exceed thal which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under poragraph 6 of these instructions, if 2 participant in a covered
transsciion knawingly enters into a lower ticr covered fransaction with 8 person who is suspended, debarred,
incligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in nddition 10 other remedies
aveilable to the federal governmeni, OS! may terminaic this transaction for causc or defsult.
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CERTIFICATION REGAR.D[NG DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Qther
Rc:pansibili:y Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(N The prospective primary pamr.lpanl certifies 1o the best of ils knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

. \ )
(a) are not presenily debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by eny federal department or agency;

(b') have not within & three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had o
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obusin, or performing a public (federel, state or local)
transaction or & contrect under o public transaction; violation of Federnl or State antitrust statules
or commission of embezzlement, thef, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

making false statements, or receiving slolen property,

((;.) are nol presently indicted for otherwise criminally or cmlly charged by a govcrnmental enuty
(federal, state or locat} with commission of any of the offenses cnumersted in paragraph (13 (b) of

this centification; and

(d) have not within a three-year penod preceding this application/propose! had one or mon-. public
(feder), state or local) transactions lenmnulcd for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primery participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall anach an explanation to this proposal {contract),

Certification Regarding Debarnwent, Suspension, Inefigibility and
Voluntary Excluslon - Lower Tier Covered Tronsactions
) (To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Panicipants)
1
By signing 8ad submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier paruc-panl, as defined in
45 CFR Par1 76, centifies 10 the best of its knowledge and beliefl that it and its principals:

() are not presenily debarred, suspended, proposed l'or debarment, declared ineligible, or voluninrily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

+ (b} where the prospective lower tier participant is unable 10 certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (conlract). '

The prospective lower ticr participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contrect) that it will include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, end Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transections,” without modification in all Jower ticrcovered transactions and in all solicitations for

lower tiec-covered transaclions.

Va_ | (ed

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title |
Commun iy Achisn fhrtnerhip rt %ﬁ%rd (urty  G-§-t:
Contrettor Name _ Dare ~
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genernl Provisions ageees by signature of the Contracioc’s
representotive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the Contracior sgrees 1o make rcasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. '

UL e

Contractor chresentauve Signature Contractor’'s Represeniative Title
Communiy Aot Butnegship ot Shottord County,  §-3-22
Coniractor Name - Date '
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Pan C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

1n accordance wilh Pant C of Public Law 103-227, the “Pro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not be permitted
in any poruon of eny indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, educalion, or
library secvices to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local govemments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. The taw does not apply lo children’s services provided in private residences, focilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohal

treatment.

The ebove language must be included in any subawards thel contain provisions for children’s services and that all
sub-graniees shall centify complionce accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result in
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 per day.

ANS '- Ceo

Contractor Representative Signature. Contractor's Representative Title
Cammpmin A n fartnershy _of Straftond Lqunty ﬁ §-2°
Contracrat Name Dete J
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FAFP Approeval to Obligate EXAMPLE OKLY Exbibit |

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE
FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
STATE
Firsl 77172019 Wood and SEAS ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
CONTRACTED BUDGET §18,220.00 5,646,370.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 6.648,372.60
EXPECYTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1.165.551,00 0.00 0.00 1,165.551.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE ~ 58,220.00 4,480,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 £,380,621.60
BMCA .
Flrst 7/4172018 . ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE16 TOTAL
[CONTRACYED BUDGET 95,663.00 1,003,586.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 1,470,209.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET : 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBUGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE . 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207.112.00
NOT AUTHORRZZED TO OBUGATE 95.653.00 786,474.00 1.000.00 69,860.00 063.097.00
SNHS

First 71120 18 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM . SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

CONTRACYED BUDGEY 163,777.00 1,718,152.00 1,000.00 04,220.00 1,867,149.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 -
PREVIOUSLY QBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
{THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,576.00 0.00 0.00 354,678.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,361,574.00 1,000.00 84,220.00 1,612,671.00
sCS .
First 11172019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 63,835.00 679,501.00 825.00 64,560.00 1,029121.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET : . ' 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
{THIS APPROVAL YO OBLIGATE 0.00 161,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 |
. TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,035.00 €97,997.00 825.00 64,960.00 847,617.00
CAPSC .
First 712019 ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 . TOTAL
(CONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 §73,691.00 757.60 55,110.00 684,136.60 |
EXPECTED BUDGET , 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBUIGATED : 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL YO OBLIGATE 0.00 ] 119,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 767.60 $5,110.00 565,761.60
TCCA
First 71172019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET ‘ 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 62,850.00 - 1,695,757.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET - 0.00
PREVIOUSLY DBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.684.00 0.00 0.00 - 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 4,000.00 82,950.00 1,194,773.00
P37 i'bB
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMI'LIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Trensparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardecs of
individual federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or afier October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensstion and associated firsi-tier sub-grants of $25,000 ot more.
If the initiel award is below $25,000 but subsequent grunt modifications result in a tota] award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Pant 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execuiive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Inititives must report the follawing information for any subaward or.
contract sward subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Nameof entity
2) Amount of oward -’
3} Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source _ '
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique identificr of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the lop five executives il:
8. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those

revenues are greater than 325M annually, and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-required data by the end of the month ptus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees o Eomply wilth the provisions of
The Federsl Funding Accountebility and Trnns;iarmcy Act, Public Law t09-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Pant 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensaiion Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s represeniative, as identified in Sections L.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Centification: -

The below named Contraclor agrees (o provide needed information s outlined above 1o the New
Hompshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with sll applicable provisions of the Federa)
. Financip! Accourm)iliry and Transparency Acl. :

é(é\ b Betsey Andrpws arter (44

{Contraclor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Titic)
Cammpunitiy Ahin Cortrorshp of S Loumby G- 822
{Contractor Nanl-*e] (Date) NV,

Contracfor Ipiyals gd‘l

Date b] r} 4 7 Pai)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
' FORM A

* As the Contractor-identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses lo the
below listed questions are true and eccurnic. .

[ The. DUNS number for your entity is: qu 3565%6

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business o organizalion

receive (1) 80 percent or mare of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federa) contracts, subcontracts, loans,

grents, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) 523,000,000 or more in ennual gross revenues

from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrents, and/or cooperative agreements?
Xwno YES

f the answer 1o H2 above is NO, stop here.
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or orgenization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or scction 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 19867
NO ‘ YES
If ihe answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.

* If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensalion of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: ‘

Nome: , Amount; ___
Neme: ] Amount: ___
Name: _ -~ Amount: ___
Neme: Amount:
Neme: . ' Amount: _____

Conuractor Injtial
Date “ﬂ 8 /22
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

), Willinm M. Gerdner, Scerctary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby centify tha COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTMERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is & New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to (ransact buginess in New
Hampshire on May 25, 1965, | lurther ceriify that alt fecs and documents required by the Sccretary of Suie's office have been
received and it in good standing as far as this office is cancermed,

Busincss ID: 65583
Certificale Number: 0004381638

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto st my hand and couse 10 be effixed
the Sesl of the Stote of New Hempghire,
this 2nd day of Apnl AD.2020. ~

T fodr

William M. Gardner
Secrotary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
(Corporate Authority)
1, Jean Miccolo, Clerk/Secretary of Community Actlon Partnership of Strafford County

{hereinafter the "Corporation”), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: {1} 1 am the duly

elected and acting Board of Directors Chalr of the Corporation;{2)1 maintsin and have custody and am famillar
with the minute booXs of the Corporation; (3) | am duly authorized to issue certifiicates with respect to the
contents of such baoks;{4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have suthorized, on September 18,

2019 such
authority to be In force pnd effect untll September 30, 2021,

The person(s) holding the below listed pesition{s) are authorized to execute and dellver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other Instrument for the sale of products and services: '

___Betsey Andrews Parker CEO
{name) {position)
—_Haope Flynn ___Board Chair
{position)

(name)
{5) the meeting of the Board of Directors was held In accordance with New Hampshire

Law and the by-laws of the Carporation; and (6} sald avtherization has not been modiflled, amended or
rescinded and continues In full force and effect as of the date hereof. !

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the Qlerk/Secretary of the corporation this

]i"‘ day of __September__, 2020. ‘ M

/;an MiccolAISeérctaw

STATE Of New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Strafford

On thlsl q % day of __September_, 2020, before me, __Kathleen Morrison the Undersigned

Officer, personally appeared Jean Miccolo who'acknowledged her/hlmself
To be the Secretary of Community Actian Partnership of Strafford Countv, a corporation and that
She/he as such Secretary being authorized to do 5o, executed the foregolng instrument for the

Purposes thereln contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and official seal.

...uu. ..'. M, 6, : 0
Commilssion Explration Date: July 15™ 2025 ._-" oy % Public/Kathleen Morrison
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To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on'the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statemenls of
financial position as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activilies,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related noles to the
financia! statements. ~

Management's Responsibllity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
stalements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements ‘based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment
Audiling Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
slatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemat control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audil also includes evalualing the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness: of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. : :



Opinion _ A
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in-all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Parinership of Strafford County as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assels and its cash flows for the years then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

. Other Matters ,

Our audit was condiicted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanyirig schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Fedaral Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Adminisirative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements lor Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the undertying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financidl statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generaily accepted in the United States of America. in our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June

© 24, 2020, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control over financial reponting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is.
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and.
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That repori is an integral part of an audit performed in

" accordance with Government Auditing Stendards in considering Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

¥ ’;"‘./45 siond 055%}0-{719%“

June 24, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAEFORD GOUNTY

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31,2019 AND 2018

ASSETS
2019 2048
CURRENT ASSETS _
Cash.and cash equivalents $ 1,066,744 $ 749,630
Accounis receivable 1,525,775 1,106,724
Contributions receivable 68,100 63,800
Tax credits recejvable - 250,000
Inventory 19,610 13,420
Prepaid expenses 12,570 58,266
. Total current assels 2,694,699 2,241,840
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Securily deposits 5,350 5.350
Property, net of accumulated deprecialion 4,815,150 3,827,963
Other nancurrent assels 27,500 27,500
Total noncurrent assels 4 848,000 3,860,813
TOYAL ASSETS ) , R | 7,542,699 $ 6,102,653
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Demand note payebie ‘ $ 105,432 $ 165,432
Accounts payable . 455,276 408,959
Accrued payrofl and related laxes 183,430 161,566
Accrued compensated absences B4,272 94,084
Refundable advances 491,025 415335
Other current liabilities 4,955 79,421
Total current liabilities 1,334,390 1,324,797
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES '
Long term debt 2,566,846 2,814,690
Total liabilities 3,901,236 4,139,487
NET ASSETS.
Wilhout donor restrictions 3,330,373 1,307,042
With donor restriclions 311,090 656,124
Tolal net assels 3,641 463 1,963,166
7.542,699 $ 6102653

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $

See Notes ta Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAEEQRD COUNTY

, STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenue
Fees for service
Rent revenue
Public support
In-kind donations

Interest
Fundraising

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES
Program services
Child services
Community services
Energy assistance
. Housing

Weatherization
Workforce davelopment

Total program services
Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Tolal expenses

CHANGE [N NET ASSETS BEFORE NONCASH
CONTRIBUTION : '

NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financlal Statements

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions - Restrictions Total
$ 8385228 § . § 8385228
2,026,319 ' . 2,026,319 .
9,385 - 9,385
492,204 240,031 . 732,235
699.583 ) - 699,583
335 . 335
253) - 2533
11,638,388 240,031 11,878,419
585,065 _(585,065) -
12,223 453 {345,034) 11,878,419
4,467,861 . 4,467,961
1,084,934 . 1,084,934
2,382,668 - 2,382,868
310,583 - 310,583
1,894,6803. - 1,864,803
134 487 - 134 487
10,275,636 - 10,275,636
834,730 - 834,730
93,752 - 83,752
11,204,118 - 11,204,118
1,019,335 (345,034) 674,301
1,003,996 . 1,003,896
© 2,023,331 (345,034) 1,678,297
1,307,042 656,124 1,963 166
$ 3330373 §_ 311090 § 3641463

4



"STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

cou

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT .

Granl revenue
Fees for service
Rentirevenue
Public support
Inkind donations

Interest
Fundraising

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, support, and net
gssets released from resltriclions

EXPENSES
Program services

Child services
Community servicas
Energy assistance
Hausing -
Weatherization
Workforce development

"Total program services
Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS,"END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements

With Donor

Without Donor.

Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 7846142 $ - $ 7.B45.142
1,773,136 - 1,773,136
25.109 . 25.109
189,972 228,410 418,382
645,330 - 645,330
2,582 - 2,582
34,146 - 34.146
10,516,417 228.410 10,744,827
8,466 (8,466) -
10,524,883 219,944 10,744,827
3,890,640 - * 3,890,640
861,420 - 861,420
2,746,649 . 2,746,649
514,700 - 514,700
1,610,027 - 1,610,027
135,528 - 135,528
9,758,964 . 9.758,964
956,693 - 956,693
70,343 - 70,343
10,786,000 - 10,786,000
(261,417) 219,944 (41.173)
1,568,159 436,180 2,004,339
$ 1307042 $ 656124 $ 1,963,166




COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

‘FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustment lo reconcile change in net assets (o
net cash provided by operaling aclmbes
Depreciation
Donated property and equ:pment
Decrease (increase) in assels:
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Tax credits receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Other noncumrent assels
Increase {decrease) in liabllities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences

Refundable advances
Other current liabilities

=

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTWITIES
‘ Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

~ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Return of deposit on building
Cash paid for debt issuance costs
Paymenls made on long-term debt
Net borrowings on demand note payable

NET CASH (USEDIN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash pald during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Donated property and equipment

Properly and equipment financed by iong term debt
See Notes to Financial Statements

]

2019 201
$ 1678207 $  (41.173)
175.10% 1156M1
(1,003.996) .
(419.051) (12.263)

. (4.300) 52,000
250,000 (78.000)
(6.090) (1.868)
45,698 (40,657)

) (15.000)

46,317 191,377
31.664 24 118
(9.812) (6.881)
75.690 23.959

(74 486) 58632
785,250 261,695
(156.292) (80.315)
(158 292) (80,315)

. 200,000

- (53.184)

(247,844) .
(60.000) 60,055
(307,844) 206,871
319,114 388,454
749,630 361,179

$ 1068744 § 749630
$ 160999 § 40,830
$ 1003996 § .
$ . § 2867874




tion

99
74
36

k]|

00

10
23
39
59
72
59
22
07
52
40
77
29
39

Intermediate Management
Workforce Totat Program {Allocation) and

Development Services Pools General fundraising Total
$ 78,252 $ 3,072,050 $ 106649 $ 441704 $ 36,580 $ 3,656,983
5911 229,667 8,416 486,879 2,813 289,775
" 9,765 279,645 7,497 22,254 4,853 . 314,249
1,498 3,858,562 - - - 31,858,562
- 695,644 - - 3,938 699,583
819 308,036 17.231 93,118 4 985 423,380
1,607 501,634 25407 30,877 1,768 559,786
24,103 548,781 (439,922) . 28,681 1,649 139,189
1,476 58,642 132,983 12,568 134 204,327
5753 149,238 {12,262) 17.018 517 154,511
1,128 . 111,988 11,349 15.137 207 138,681
195 133,297 5,029 21,668 2,385 162,379
2,320 105,145 - 69,956 .- 175,101
1,158 116,547 (23,504) 10,948 148 104,139
118 32,0 76 3336 18,958 54,401
192 16,762 267 11,129 252 '28.410
189 36,550 10,224 4,180 - 50,964
- 10,439 150,560 2,156 - 163,155
- ‘- - 945 - 945
- 2,869 - - - 2,969
- 8,008 - 66 14 554 22 629
$ 1344867 $ 10,275636 3 - $ 834730 $ 93,752 $ 11,204.118



ation
728

509
943

818

774
061
392

27
762
899
750

339
297
218
030
080

027

Intermediate Management
Workforce Total Program {Allocation) And
Development Services . Pools General Fundraising Total
$ 70677 § 2790212 $ ° 126143 5§ 518114 $ 27189  § 3461658 -
6.251 . 239,281 9,926 41,023 2118 292,349
8,774 244 440 11,669 32,201 3107 291,527
10,302 4,067,975 - : - 4,067,975
- 638,320 2,345 . 4.665 645,330
719 382,682 18,186 67,845 228 469,051
3153 275,608 34,805 14,984 1.412 326,909
25418 455,160 (384,847) 57,802 2,159 130,274
1,210 18,050 118.877 24,103 7575 168,605
3,735 132,169 {3.880) 18,286 -+ 439 147,014
1,203 112,376 14,743 12,239 190 139,548 .
- 85,649 37 44322 T 4,299 131,597
2,320 94,150 - 21.521 - 115671
1,339 107,678 {12,541) 11,224 978 107,336
150 12172 52 6,210 5,060 21,494
179 . 16,099 307 5,280 31 21,727
98 73.591 63,582 - 1,314 138 487
. 6,043 - 35,508 - 41,549
- . - 44,219 - 44,219
- 7,308 176 3,617 12,578 23,660
$ 135528 5 9758964 $ - $ 956,693 $ 70,343 $ 10,786,000




NOTE 1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2019 AND 2018

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(cK3)

private New Hampshire non-profil organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, ulilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promole self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, sell-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

In addition 1o its administrative office located in Dover, the Agency maintains its
outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington, Milton, Rochester,
Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal, state, county and
local funds, as well as United Way grants, public uilities, foundation and
charitable grant funds, fees for service, privale business donations, and
donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite board of
directors made up of elecled officials, community leaders from for-profit and non-

" profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is responsible

for assuring that the Agency continues o assess and respond to the causes and
conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and community
outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The Agency
administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000 people
annually, and the programs are designed to have 3 measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAAP)
of the United States. ' '




Financlal Statement Presentation

The financial -statement presenlation follows the recommendations of the
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958-210, Financial Slatements of Nol-For-
Profit Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 858-210, the Agency is required to
report information regarding ils financial position and activities according to the
following net asset classifications:

Nel assets wilhout donor_restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions.and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency's management and board of
directors. )

Nel assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations

imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency of by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Oonor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assels with
donor restrictions. When iestriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of aclivilies. '

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Agency had net assets wilhout donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advances . :
Granls received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed

or expenditures are incurred.

Contrbutions .

All coniributions are considered 1o be available for unrestiéted use unless
specifically restricted by the doner. Amounts received that are restricted by the
‘donor for fulure periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently reslricted suppor, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriclion is fulfifled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services .

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Gontributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunleers provided various services throughout the year that are not recogni'zed
as conlributions in the financial slalements since the recognilion criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met. '

10



Fair Value of Financial Instruments .

Accounting Standard Codification No. 825, *Financial Instruments,” requires the
Agency to disclose estimated fair value for its financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of cash, accounts receivable, invenlory, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments, .

inventory
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed

value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation
Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5.000, are capitalized

at cosl or, if donated, al the approximate fair value al the date of donation,
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3 -10 years
Vehicles 5. Tyears

Depreciation expense aggregated $175,101 and $115,671 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $84.272 and $94,084 al December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes
The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal

Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New

Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes",
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency’s tax position laken on its information returns for the years
2016 through 2019 and has concluded that no additional provision for income
taxes is necessary in the Agency's financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ) -
The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents,

11



Revenue Recoqnition Policy _
The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public

support and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Agency expecls to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost incumed to obtain a contract will be expensed as incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year.

Use of Estimates

- The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generalfly accepted
accounting principles. requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that aflect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent. assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

~Advertising Expenses
The Agency expenses adverlising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $12,558

and $22,000, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
amounted to $2,156 and $718, respectively and have been included with interest
expense in the statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
- financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (See

Note 9).

In-kind Donations :

. The Agency pays below-markel rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounling principles, the difference

between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental

space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in

the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation

was determined to be $177,259 and $255,313 for the years ended December 31,

2019 and 2018, respeclively. .

The Agenty also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $33 857 and $150,442 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. -

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accardance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $397,292
and $91,175, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2019. For the year
ended December 31, 2048, the estimated fair value of these food commodities -
and goods was determined to be $181,461 and $58,114, respectively. -

b
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NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been.
summarized on a functiona! basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.

The expenses thal are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of allocation
Salaries and benefits Time and effort
Occupancy Square footage/revenues
Depreciation ' Square footage
All olher expenses . Approved indirect rate
" PROPERTY k
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, property consisted of the following:
2013 2018
Land, buildings and improvements $5.039871 $3,993,017
Fumniture, equipment and machinery 600,526 562,450
Vehicles . 327,137 249,778
!
—-Total . . 5,967,534 4,805,246
Less accumulated depreciation 1,152,384 977,283
Net properly | $4815150 $3827.963

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Agency's financial ‘ass'ets as of December 31, 2019
and 2018:

2019 2018
Financial assels at year end.
Cash $1068744 $ 748,630
Accounts receivable 1,525,775 1,106,724
Contributions receivable 68,100 63,800
Tax credits receivable’ . - 250,000
Total financial assets 2f662.61 9 2.170,154
Less amounts not available to be used
within one year: :
Board designated funds 307,315 307,315

Financial assets available to meet general

expenditures over the next twelve months $2355304 §$ 1862839
13



NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

The Agency's goal is generally to-maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-

term investments, including money market accounts.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVA BLE

~ Accounts receivable.are stated at the amount management expects 1o coliect

from balances outstanding at year end. Balances tha! are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
altowance for uncoliectible accounts was estimated lo be zero at December 31,
2019 and 2018. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.,

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have nol yel been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded. Total unconditional promises to give
were as follows at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Within one year - $ 38057 $ 28,300
In two to five years 30,043 35,500

$._ 68100 § 63800

TAX CREDIT PROGRAM

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Aulhomys Tax Credit
Program allows New Hampshire businesses to contribute to not-for-profit
c¢ommunity, housing and economic developmenl projects and receive a 75%
New Hampshire state tax credit that can be applied against New Hampshire
business profils, business enterprise and insurance premiumn taxes. Through this
Tax Credit Program, the Agency did not recognize any revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2019. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Agency
recognized contribution revenue of $78,000. The total cumulative contribution
revenue raised to date is $250,000 as of December 31, 2019. At December 31,
2019, the Agency had no tax credits receivable. Al December 31, 2018, thp
Agency had tax credils receivable of $250,000.

PLEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 8, all assels of ihe Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Nole 8, the
building of the Agency is pledged as colialeral under the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement. _

14



NOTE 8.

NOTE.S.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The. Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The note is payable upon demand, but in the absence of demand, is
due in September 2020. Interest is stated at the prime rate plus 1% which
resulted in an interest rate of 5.75% and 6.50% at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The note is collateralized by all the assets of the Agency.

LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at December 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

4.90% mortgage payable lo Kennebunk Savings

~ Bank with inlerest only payments for 36 months

followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months for the first ten years. In 2028
principal and inlerest paymenis will adjust to
1.50% above 1ke highest five-year Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston. The mortgage note payable
is' collateralized by the building and leases and
rents of 577 Central Ave.

5.00% mortgage payable to ‘the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund of interest only payments
for 36 months followed by principal and interest
payments for 264 months. The morigage nole
payable is collateralized by the building and leases
and rents of 577 Central Ave.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
‘issuance cosis
Unamortized deferred financing cost

Tolat long term debt

019 2018
$2143096 $2,347.874
474778 520,000
2617.674  2.867.874
(51.028) (53 184)

52566846 £2814600

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ended
Dacember 31

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

. Total

15

Amount

18,343
75,657
79,448
83,430

2,360,996

22617874



NOTE 10.

NOTE 11.

NET ASSETS
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets with donor restrictions consusted of

the following:

3_0__1§ 2018

Summer Meals $ 11914 § S162
Building Campaign 27.891 488,385
Security deposits - 51,584 32,145
Whole Family 163,738 -
Revolving loan fund - . 52,736
Fuel assistance . 33,095 23,5686
Weatherization | 1434 7.671
Coordinatled entry 8,147 -
Holiday baskets f ' . 3985 -
Food pantry _ 2,521 .
Special events : 3,881 L -

Total . § 311090 5636124

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets without donor restrictions consisted
of the foliowing:

20198 2018
'Undesignated 1 $3023058 § 099,727
Board designated 307,315 - 307,315
Total net assets without donor restrictions £3330373 $1.307.042

LEASE COMMITMENTS

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various leasés. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was $111,043 and
$117,534, respectively. Certain eqmpment is leased by the Agency under the

terms of various teases.

The approximate fulure minimum lease payments on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended ,
December 31 : mount
2020 $ 64,073
2021 19,633
2022 15,697
2023 1
2024 1
Total £ 99403
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NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a-403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Emplayee contributions to the Plan are made at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides a matching
contribution equal to 25% of the employee’s contribution up to 5% of the
employee’s compensation. Effective Aprit 1, 20186, the Agency instituted an auto
enrofiment featlure mandating a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching
contributions for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled $28,408
and $21,727, respectively. .

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Agency receives a majority of ils support from f{ederal and state
governments, For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, approximately
81% and 90%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and stale governments. if a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it woukd have a significant effect on the Agency's programs and
activities.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK .
The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financia! institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial inslitution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required 1o repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

NONCASH CONTRIBUTION :

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Agency received land and
property as a conlribution. The contribution has been recorded at the fair value of
the ‘land and property, tolaling $1,003,996. Additionally, the Agency received

© $130,000 from the contributor, resulting in a total contribution of $1.133,896.
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NOTE 17.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS -

The impact of the novel caronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Agency's business. The significance of the impact of
these: disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Agency’s
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in tum, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed in response 1o the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it
more challenging for management to estimate fulure performance of the Agency,
particularly over the near to medium term, ~

The Agency has remained proactive with its current funding sources, as well as
programs being made available during the COVID-19 pandemic. Prior to
issuance of the audit report, the Agency was able to secure a loan from the
Payroll Protection Program (PPP) offered under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and

Economic Security (CARES) Act. The Agency received loan proceeds in the

amount of $87,500. The PPP may be up to 100% forgivable if the funds are used
for certain expenses as specified by the program. :

If the Agency does not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP
loan is payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of
payments for the first six manths. The Agency intends to use the proceeds for
purposes consistent with the PPP. While the Agency cumently believes that its
use of the loan proceeds will meet the conditions for forgiveness of the loan, we
cannot assure you that the Agency will be eligible for forgiveness of the loan, in
whole or in par.

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financia! statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent evenls are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arcse
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 24,
2020, the date the December 31, 2019 financial statements were available for

issuance.
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LS NAME

ation

alion
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ership

h and Humepn Services
th end Humasn Services
wices

| Enargy & Community Sefvicos

nd Adul servicas
th end Humen Servicos,

th and Human Sarvices, DPH,
*Chiidren, Youth and Familios
-Chidren, Youth and Femilles

i Energy 8 Planning
{ Enargy & Planning

‘CNIdren, Youth and Famiilas
- Children, Youth and Femilles

GCRANTOR'S NUMBER

4300-222

4300-222
As-RisX Aftor School Cere Centars

None

City of Dover
City of Rochasler
05-95-42-423010-1927-102-5007 3%
05-95-42-423010-7627-102-500731
Communlty Pertners

2016-0003
2016-0003

01-02-02-024010-7708-074-500587

010-045-7672-512-0392

05-95-48-48010-78720000-512-500352

05-95-90-902010-5896
03-0%5-042-421010-29730000-102-5007 3447167300

Q3-005-04 54300 10-8 1 440000-§02- 50060 147104603
13-DHHS-OWW.CSPO5

01-02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587
01.02-02-024010-T7050000-074-500587

05-95-045-450010-7 14800000- 102-5007 31
Q1CHESB002 & 01HPO0OT02
05-095-042-421010-29630000-102-5007 344 2106802
05-095-042-421010-29550000-102-5007 34-4 2106603

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES
$ 117,993
$ §4.468
94 387 188,855
397,202
3704140
$ 30652
$ 27802
51,358 78.158
§5.255
52,224
™
$ 2773
$ 28290
28612 58 902
] 56.902
31647
$ 164711
$ 2.120
19304 § 22114
184,436
9.557
162,321
$4,658 251,00
2,234,146
180,189 2414035
157,287
2,752,019
624
35835
$ 7,033,227
§ 6176713

$ 1609636



NOTE 1.

NOTE 2,

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

NOTE §.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)

_includes the federal award activity of Community Action Parinership of Strafford

County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December

31, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the

requirements of Tille 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for

Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a

selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford:
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes

in net assets, or cash fiows of the Agency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reporied on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following -the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. ;

INDIRECT COST RATE ‘ _-
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

FOOD DONATION .
Nonmonetary assistance .is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the

commodities received and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIENTS
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County had no subrecipienis for the

year ended December 31, 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptiolles General of the United States, the financial

statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit

organization), which comprise the stalements of financial position as of December 31, 2019 '
and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and

the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June

24, 2020.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Parinership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of:
expressing our opinion on the financial stalements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the efiectiveness of Community Action Parinership of Strafford County's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's internal control. ’

A deficiency in inlernal conlrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detecl and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A matenal weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable -
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detecled and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, ini internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit atiention by those charged with governance.
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-. Our- consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses. or significant deficiencies and therefore, malenal

" weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have nol been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be materia) weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified. :

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable’ assurance about whether Community Action ‘Parnership of
Strafford County's financiai stalements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance’ with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, praviding.-an opinion on compliance
wilh those provisions was not an objeclive of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is. solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
thé organization’s internal conlrol or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemmen! Audiling Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not sultable
for any other purpose.

fton Me Deantll ¢ Koo s

Jr {'/fg siomad (D5 s0ci¥ic?

June 24, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

5

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Parinership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

Regor't on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OM8 Complisnce Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Partnership of Strafiord
County's majar federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2019. Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ resulls seclion of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

'Managément's Responsibility | :

Management is responsibie for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the temms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmen! Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Tille 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, -Uniform Administralive Requirements, Cosl Prnciples,
and Audil Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refetred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occumed. An-audit
include's examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures: as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. '

We believe that.our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audi does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to ebove that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federat programs for the year ended December 31,

2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Aclion Partnership of Strafford County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we. considered Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's imternal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to detérmine the audiling procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control® over

compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over-compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not aliow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to preveni, or detect and correct, noncompliance with 8
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A matenal weakness in
intermal conlrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibifity. that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significan! deficiency in inlernal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a tederal program that is less severe
than a materal weakness in intemnal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. .

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we_consider to be malerial
‘weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the resulls of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suilable for any other

purpose.
Lotont e ibanell i Kobo b
7} g .
fre'ss stonal (Vs secietio?
3 .

June 24, 2020 .
Wolleboro, New Hampshire
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A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

1.

The audilors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Aclion Parnership of Strafford County. were prepared in
accordance with GAAP, .

‘No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
‘the Independent Auditors' Report on Intemal Control Over Financial Reponrting and on

Compliance and other Mallers Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Governmen! Auditing Slandards. No material weaknesses "are

reported.

No instances of noncompliance maierial to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford Counz, which would be required. to be reported in
accordance with Governmen! Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Progrem
and on Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported. -

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs far Community
Action Partnership of Stratford County expresses an' unmodified opinion on all major

federal programs. »

Audit findings that aré required to be reported in accord'anc_e with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule.

The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Heallh and Human Services,
{ ow-Income Home Energy Assistance Program, CFDA 93.568, and U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Child Nutrition Cluster, CFDA, 10.555 (National School Lunch Program),
and CFDA, 10.559 (Summer Food Service Program for Children). NON-FEDERAL,
Eversource Energy Service Company, Home Energy Assistance Program. '

The threshold used for-distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

Community Aclion Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
audilee. |

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

AUDIT

None
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS'
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

A. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
2018-001 General Ledger Close and Adjusting Journal Entries
Condition: A significant quantity of adjusting journal entries were provided by the
Organization during the audit. Significant adjusting entries related to the following
areas: cash, accrued payroll, pledges receivable and property. The adjusting entries
were provided by management, and in cqnain cases, identified by the auditor.

Recommendation: Procedures should be implemented to ensure all required month and
year end journal entries are being recorded in a timely and accurate manner.

Current status: The recommendation was adopted during 2018.
2018-002 Monthly Reconciliations '

Condition: Various statement of financia!l position accounts were hol b'eing teconciled to
their subsidiary ledgers on a monthly basis. : '

Réc‘:om_memiation: Procedures should be implemented 1o - ensure all monthly
reconciliations are being performed. '

Current status; The recommendation was adopted during 2019.
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' PARTNERSHIP

. of Strafford County

2020 Board of Directors

Hope Morrow Flynn, Chair

Alan Brown Vice Chair

Kristen Collms Treasurer

Jean Mlccolo Secretary

Alison Dorow

Marci Theriault

Petros Lazos .
Terry Jarvis ,
Kristen Collins

Thomes Levasseur

Don Chick

Becky Sherbume

Erin Z.ajlcck

Cindy Brown

Jason 'I'homas

Alli Morr!s

Maureen Staples

Commun!ty Action Partnership of Strafford County
Administrative & Weatherltallon Office, 642 Central Avenue, Dover, NH 603-435-2500
Malllng address: P.O. Box 160, Dover, NH 03821-0160
l

Outreach OHices: . Head Start Centers:
61 Locust Street, Dover 603-460- 4237 62A Whittier Street. Dover 603-285-9460
527 Main Sireel, Farmington 603- 4804313 : 120 Main Street, Farminglon 603.755-2683

55 Industrial Orive, Milton 603-652-0990
150 Wakefield Streel, Rochesler 603-285-9461
184 Maple St Exi., Somersworth 503-817-5458



Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
State of New Hampshire - FY-2021 FAP Scrvices

Key Personnel-
Name Job Title Sslary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
- this Contract | this Contracl
Lauren Berman Program Director 70,844.80 40% 2831792 °
Interim Fuel & Electric 37.939.20 60% 22,763.52

Heidi Clough

Manager




Lauren Jan Berman

Professionel Experience
2015-Present Progrem Dicector, Community Action Partnership of StrafTord County, NH

s Manege programs, Outreach Services, Coordinated Entry, Emergency
; . Solutions Greni(ESG) Homeless outreach, Weatherization

s, Prepare and develop budgets

o' Wrile grants for cutrent and new programs

o* ; Employ and manage staff, Icad staff mectings, trained and supervised,
", participated in employee reviews and supparted staff in ]l aspects of

. their jobs.

2010-2015 Welfare Officer, City of Somersworth, Somersworth, NH

- Administer the general assistance program in accordance with the wrirten
' City of Somersworth Assistance Guidelines
«  Adhere 1o the RSA:165
«  Establish and maintain relationships with other agencies and
organizations in the community 1o ensure that services are not
- duplicsted.
e Work with applicants to ensure that all necessary information is
‘submitted Lo determine the eligibility.
o Make referrals when necessary.ic Homeless shelters, foed panlrncs
Updated the current City Guidelines 2015
*  Murinisin records, notes and confidently.-

20042010 " Founder and Paciner, Good Works Employment Services York County

o | Co-founder and partner of Gook Work Employment Services (GWES), a
i focally-run company commitied to assisting individuals in finding
gamful cmployment, continuing their education and/or securing

: vo]unt:cr opportunities, housing, or other community supports per
- requests from referral sources. Clients referred to GWES by Bureau of

» Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), DHHS ASPIRE and Child Protective

E $ervius, school districts and private insurers.

" Prepared, batanced and oversaw budget and financial records
+ Educated refervals.in the area of job development, creating resumes,
mlcrvncwmg skills, carcer exploration end provide JOb eoaching for
succcssfu! employment oulcomes.

Maintained knowledge of local cesources, made refereals for community

" supports, attended team meelings and Region | VR provider meetings.

i¢0mplclcd requirements ford-year certification to provide services via
Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (OOL)



Lauren Jan Berman

200304 Vocational Besource Specialist, Work Opportunmcs Unlimited, Saco, ME
Assisted clients referred by the Bureau of Yocational Rehabilitation

in job development, creating resumes, interviewing skills and job
caaching for successful employment outcomes.
o Completed necessary daily paperwork, including progress notes and

monthly and quarterly reports.
= Participsted in mansgement training programs.

2002-03 Physical Therapy Assistant, HealthSouth Corp., Boston, MA
o Provided physical therapy services to individuals with spinal cord
injury, brain injury, cancer, stroke, and cardiac health-related issues.
s Co-led running exercise groups and personal exercise programs.

2001-02 Supervisor, Starbucks Coffee Corp, Brighton, MA
s Supervised employus and managed the store to ensure efficient

customer service.
e Placed weekly orders with account vendors, balanced daily cash
receipts and coordinated daily dcployment duties.

¢ Trained new employees.



Lauren Jan Berman

;
Educatlon & Professional Development
1995 B.S. Therapcunc Recreation Lthaca College Ithaca, NY

2013-2015 Board of D,xrcchons for Strafford County Community Action

t
2010 Ticket to Work;Training and Support for Maine Employment Networks,
USM, Muskic School, Augusta, ME

}

2009 Dotmestic Violence Training, Community Counseling Center  Portland, ME
§

2009 Building Relatlonshaps wilh Businesses Training, USM, Muskie School,
Lewiston, ME

2008 Positive Employ'vmcnt Practices for Vocational Rehabilitation Training, 1C]
UMASS/Boston ;

2008 Certificate for Mentoring in 8 Job Development Training Program
UMASS/Boston

2008 Best Practices in Employment Services for People with Co- Occurnng Mental
Ilincss and Substance Abuse Training, ICl, UMASS/Boston

2007 MaineCare Elngubuhty Workshop, Consumers for ‘Affordable Health Care.
Sanford, ME

)

2007 Neuro-Linguistic Programming Training, Univ. of Maine, Biddelord, ME
2007 ACRE Certificate, ICI, UMASS/Boston -
2004 Certificate Elfective Job Development, Institute on Disability, UNH

_ 2004 Certificate Assistive Technology in the Workplace, Institute on Disabitity UNH

2004 Management Training Work Opportunitics, Saco, ME



Heidi Clough
iitneNgs
A
g

Summary of Qualifications A sclf-motivated individual with sirong work cthic, atiention to deteil, time
menagement, communication, interpersonel, and orgenizationat skilts. Used working in o fast-paced office
environment end possesses the sbility to work collaboratively with others as well as independently. Proficient in
Microsoft Office, Office165- Outlook, OneDrive, SharePoint, also familiar with Teams and Zoom.

Profcssional Experience

November 2003 — Present Community Action Partnership of Strafford County- Ovtreach
Specialist*USDA Coordinator Dover, NH

» Strives to provide effective, efficient, 2nd compassionate customer service.

* Provides education and refemol for progrems in and outside of CAP.

* Finalizes accurate epplications, ensuring they are comptete with suﬁponing documents

* Centifies eligibility for various progrems

* Partness closely with fue) companies, firewood vendors, and utilities companies.

« Ability to index and retrieve data on paper sndfor clectronically.

« Maintains security for private and confidential informetion.

« Gathers inventory from USDA food pantries, kitchens, and homeless shelter monthly.

* Exccutes a quarterly report for USDA review.

« Conducts & monthiy review of USDA allocations to determine bimonthly food allotments agency.
* Coordinates agencics of pickup times and piace for their bimonthly sllotments.

* Work within the FAP database inputting bills and printing checks.

« Began as 8 Receptionist and promoted through positions of increasing responsibility (Receptionist,
Intake Specialist, Billing, Centifier /USDA coordinator. Quireach Specialist

Education: Associate degree in Business Science/Computer Applications (Mcintash College — Dover,
NH) Certificates: Motivetional interviewing Basic, Safc Food Handling, updated MS Office opplicotions,
Workplace Violence: Prevention, Safety & Survival, Connecting through communication Besics

References: Available-Upon Request



